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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of Mankind Life Sciences Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Mankind Life Sciences Private Limited
(hereinafter referred to as “the Company™), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2024,
and the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), Statement of Changes
in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
(hereinafter referred to as “the financial statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2024, and its loss and
other comprehensive loss, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the financial
statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Company’s annual report, but does not include the financial
statements and our auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management For The Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs, profit/ loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company
in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian




Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the

aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit, We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Board of Directors.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of the Board of Directors use of the going concern basis of accounting
in preparation of financial statements and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or. if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company to cease to continue as a going concern.




» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other

matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A™ a statement
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:
a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books except for the matters stated in the
paragraph (i)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g).

¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income),
the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report
are in agreement with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under
Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as
amended.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2024
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March
2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in “Annexure B”.

g) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not paid / provided any remuneration to its directors during the year.

h) The modification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected
therewith are as stated in the paragraph 2(b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b) and
paragraph (i)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g).

i) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditor’s) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i) The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position
as at 31 March 2024 - refer note 30(i) to the financial statements.




ii) The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company - refer note 37 to the financial statements.

iv) (a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or
any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other persons or entities,
including foreign entities (“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall:

- directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) by or on behalf of the Company, or
« provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(b) The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
have been received by the Company from any persons or entities, including foreign entities
(“Funding Parties™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Company shall:

« directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) by or on behalf of the Funding Party, or

« provide any guarantee, security or the like from or on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries; and

(c) Based on such audit procedures as considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub clause (iv) (a) and (iv) (b) contain any material mis-statement.

v) The Company has not declared/ paid any dividend during the year.

vi) Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used accounting
software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit
log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions
recorded in the software except that, as described in note 40 to the financial statements, audit
trail feature is not enabled for direct changes to data when using certain access rights and also
for certain changes made using privileged/ administrative access right. Further, in respect of
software used in maintaining payroll records, in absence of service organisation controls
report, we are unable to comment on whether audit trail feature of the underlying database
was enabled and operated throughout the year. Further, during the course of our audit we did
not come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with in respect of
accounting software except that in absence of service organisation controls report, we are
unable to comment on the same in respect of the software used to maintain payroll records.




As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable from April 1,
2023, reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 on
preservation of audit trail as per the statutory requirements for record retention is not
applicable for the financial year ended March 31, 2024.

For Bhagi Bhardwaj Gaur & Co.
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm’s Registration Number: 007895N
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per Mohit Gupta

Partner

Membership Number: 528337
UDIN: 24528337BKDGAK9361

New Delhi
May 15, 2024



Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s report on the financial statements of Mankind Life
Sciences Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under *Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our
report of even date)

(i)(a)(A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of property, plant and equipment.

(B) The Company does not have any intangible assets and accordingly, reporting under clause
3(i)(a)(B) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The property, plant and equipment have been physically verified by the management during the
year and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. In our opinion, the
frequency of physical verification program adopted by the Company, is reasonable having
regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.

(¢) The Company does not own any immovable property other than properties where the Company
is the lessee. For properties where the Company is a lessee, the lease arrangements have not
been duly executed in favour of the Company in following case:

Description | Right of | Location Details  of | Period Reason for
of property | Use Asset Lessor held non-execution
Value of lease
(Gross) agreement /
Remarks
Leasehold 462.79 lacs | Gondpur Jaimurthy held since | Refer note
Land Industrial Area, | Minerals 01.01.2022 | below
Paonta Sahib, | and
Himachal Chemicals
Pradesh Private
Limited
Building on | 28.88 lacs | Gondpur capitalized | Building
Leasehold Industrial Area, | N.A on constructed by
Land Paonta Sahib, 27.11.2023 | the Company
Himachal on above
Pradesh disputed land.

Note: The said property was sold by Bank of Baroda in favour of the Company under
Securitisation and Reconstruction of Financial Aseets and Enforcement of Security Interest Act,
2002 on “As is where is and as is whatever is basis and without recourse” . The transfer of lease
agreement in favour of the Company has been disputed by the government agencies in respect
of pending PF / ESIC dues from the lease title holder of the property “Jaimurthy Minerals and
Chemicals Private Limited”.

(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment during the year. Further, the
Company does not hold any intangible assets.

(e) No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami
property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made
thereunder. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(i)(¢) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(i) (a) The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year. In our opinion,
the frequency of such verification is reasonable and procedures and coverage as followed by
management were appropriate. No discrepancies were noticed on verification between the




physical stocks and the book records that were 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of
inventory.

(b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits by banks or financial institutions
on the basis of security of current assets during any point of time of the year. Accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(iii) (a) During the year, the Company has provided loans to its employees and as follows:

Particulars Loans
INR in lacs

Aggregate amount granted during the year
- Others (Loan to employees) 35.00

Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date in respect of above cases
Others (Loan to employees) 32.67

Apart from above, during the year, the Company has not provided loans, advances in the nature
of loans, stood guarantee and has not provided security to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships, any other parties and hence not commented upon.

(b) During the year, the investments made and loans given to its employees, the terms and
conditions under which investments were made and loans given to employees were not
prejudicial to the Company’s interest. The Company has not provided any guarantee or security
and granted loans and advances in the nature of loans to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships or any other parties during the year and hence not commented upon.

(¢) In respect of loans and advances in the nature of loans granted by the Company, the schedule
of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and the
repayments/receipts of principal and interest are regular.

(d) There are no amounts of loans granted to the employees, which were overdue for more than
ninety days.

(¢) The Company has granted loan which had fallen due during the year and were repaid on or
before the due date. Further, no fresh loans were granted to any party to settle the overdue loans.

(f) The Company has not granted any loan, which is repayable on demand or without specifying
any terms or period of repayment.

(iv) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
complied with the provisions of section 186 of the Act in respect of loans, investments and
guarantees, as applicable. The Company has not provided any security and hence not commented
upon.

(v) The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any amounts which
are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act and the
rules made thereunder, to the extent applicable. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause
3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(vi) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not
prescribed the maintenance of cost records under Section 143(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 in
respect of Company’s products/business activity. Accordingly, clause 3(vi) of the Order is not
applicable.




(vii)(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, amounts deducted/ accrued in the books of account in respect of
undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Services Tax (‘GST’), Provident fund,
Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Duty of Customs, Cess and other material statutory
dues have generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities. According to the
information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of GST,
Provident fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Duty of Customs, Cess and other
material statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2024 for a period of more than six months
from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of GST, Provident
fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales tax, Service tax, Duty of Customs, Value
added tax, Cess or other statutory dues which have not been deposited by the Company on
account of disputes.

(viii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions,
previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the
Income-tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.

(ix) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not have any
loans or other borrowings from any lender. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any bank
or financial institution or government or government authority.

(¢) According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, the Company has
not obtained any term loans. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
balance sheet of the Company, we report that no funds have been raised on short-term basis by
the Company. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

(¢) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not have any
subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix)(e) and clause
3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(x) (a) The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments). Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly. clause
3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

(xi) (a) Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the information
and explanations given to us, considering the principles of materiality outlined in Standards on
Auditing, we report that no fraud by the Company or on the Company has been noticed or
reported during the course of the audit.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12) of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as
prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central
Government.




(¢) According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation made to

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

us by the management of the Company, there are no whistle-blower complaints received by the
Company during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company.
Accordingly, clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the transactions
with related parties are in compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013,
where applicable, and the details of the related party transactions have been disclosed in the
financial statements as required by the applicable Indian Accounting Standards.

(a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has an internal audit system as required under section 138 of the Act which is commensurate with
the size and nature of its business.

(b) We have considered the reports issued by the Internal Auditors of the Company till date for
the period under audit.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected to its directors

and hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the
Company.

(xvi)(a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India

Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India

Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

(¢) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by

the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

(d) As represented by the management, there is no Core Investment Company within the Group (as

defined in the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank), hence, the requirement to report on
clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xvii) The Company has incurred cash losses in the current and immediately preceding financial years

amounting to INR 2,136.19 lacs and INR 1,280.59 lacs respectively.

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause

(xix)

3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,

ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial labilities,
other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of
Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company is not capable of meeting
its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one
year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future
viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date
of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling
due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company
as and when they fall due.




(xx) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not fulfil the criteria
as specified under section 135(1) of the Act read with Companies (Corporate Social

Responsibility Policy) Rules 2014 and accordingly, reporting under clauses 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b)
of the Order are not applicable.

For Bhagi Bhardwaj Gaur & Co.
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm’s Registration Number: 007895N
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per Mohit Gupta ,
Partner

Membership Number: 528337
UDIN: 24528337BKDGAK9361

New Delhi
May 15, 2024



Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the financial statements of Mankind Life
Sciences Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid financial statements
under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Mankind Life
Sciences Private Limited (“the Company™) as of 31 March 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the
financial statements of the Company as at and for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls with reference to financial statements based on the criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct
of its business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements were established and maintained and whether such controls operated
effectively in all material respects. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence

about the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements and their
operating effectiveness.

Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of such internal financial controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
A company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect
on the financial statements.




Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to
the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate

because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at
31 March 2024, based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India (the “Guidance Note™).

For Bhagi Bhardwaj Gaur & Co.
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm’s Registration Number: 007895N

L
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per Mohit Gupta

Partner

Membership Number: 528337
UDIN: 24528337BKDGAK9361

New Delhi
May 15,2024



Mankind Life Sciences Private Limited
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024
All amounts are in INR lacs unless otherwise stated

Particulars Notes As at As at
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
(Restated)*
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 4,922.86 5.257.73
Capital work-in-progress 3 38.53 520.56
Right-of-use assets 4 449.25 -
Investment in subsidiaries
Financial assets
{i} Investments 5 1,518.17 1,133.88
(it} Other financial assets 6 663.24 383.49
Income tax assets (net) 7 11.98 20,26
Deferred tax assets (net) 8 218.79 45.99
Other non-current assets 9 5.40 -
Total non-current assets 7.828.22 7,361,91
Current assets
Inventories 10 1,504.88 2,576.95
Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables 11 754.47 623.23
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 12 835.71 1,778,98
(i1} Loans 13 32.67 -
Other current assets 9 845.26 876.83
Total current assets 3,972.99 5,855.99
Total assets 11,801.21 13,217.90
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 14 13,351.00 13,351.00
Other equity 15 {3,676.45) (1,683.47)
Total equity 9,674.55 11,667.53
LIABILITES
Nen-current liabilities
Provisions 16 35.58 21,82
Total non-current liabilities 35.58 21.82
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Trade payables 17
(a) total outstandina dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 14.54 2.59
(b) tatal outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small 1,177.89 B840.16
enterprises
{ii} Other financial liabilities 18 546.00 547.06
Provisicns 16 120.42 67.47
Other current liabilities 19 232.23 71.27
Total current liabilities 2,091.08 1,528.55
Total liabilities 2,126.66 1,550.37
Total equity and liabilities 11,801.21 13,217.90
*Please refer note no. 34 regarding disclosures pursuant to Ind AS-8.
The above balance sheet should be read in conjugation with accompanying notes.
As per our report of even date
For Bhaagi Bhardwaij Gaur & Co, For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants Mankind Lifesciences Private Limifed

Firm Reaqistration Number: 0078395N

; Blwad Al

per Mohit\Gupta Akhlas Ahmed

Partner Director Director

Membership Number: 528337 DIN - 08973480 DIN - 08040683 [ '
Rahul Dua Sanjay Koul
Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer

Sandhya Gharana
Company Secretary
Membership No. A38143

Place: New Delhi Place: New Delhi
Date: May 15, 2024 Date: May 15, 2024



Mankind Life Sciences Private Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2024
All amounts are in INR lacs unless otherwise stated

Pacticulars Notes Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
(Restated)*
I Income
Revenue from operations 20 6,327.39 4,901.36
Other income 21 163.64 25.35
Total income (I) 6,491.03 4,926.71
1I Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 22 239.91 357.53
Purchases of stock-in-trade 23 4,759.95 2,851.27
Changes in inventories of finished goods and Stock in trade 24 1,039.79 764.34
Employee benefits expense 25 1,424,531 1,122.42
Finance costs 26 32.76 33.83
Depreciation and amortization expense 27 67.88 25.90
Other expenses 28 1,078.76 1,055.64
Total expenses (II) 8,643.36 6,210.93
111 Loss before tax (I-IT) (2,152.33) (1,284.22)
IV Tax Expense:
Current tax 29 - =
Deferred tax 29 (171.68) (44.57)
Adjustment of tax relating to earlier periods 29 = -
Total tax expense (IV) (171.68) (44.57)
V' Loss for the year (III-IV) (1,980.65) (1,239.65)
VI Other compreh ive 1
(i) Item that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
- Remeasurement gain [ (loss) of the defined benefit plan (4.45) (3.22)
(i) Income tax relating to item that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss
- Remeasurement gain / (loss) of the defined benefit plan 112 0.81
Other comprehensive loss for the year (VI) (3.33) (2.41)
VIl Total comprehensive loss for the year (V+VI) i (1,983.98) (1,242.06)
Earnings per equity share (EPS) (face value of INR 10 each)
Basic EPS (in INR) (23.27) (22.00)
Diluted EPS {In INR) (23.27) (22.00)

=Please refer note no. 38 regarding disclosures pursuant te Ind AS-8.

The a2bove statement of profit and loss should be read In conjugation with accompanying notes.

As per our report of even date

For Bhagi Bhardwaj Gaur & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reglistration Number: 007895N
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Mankind Lifesciences Private Limited

Akhlas Ahmed Abhay Kumar Srivastava

Director Director
DIN - 0B973480 DIN - 08040683
QM wg
Rahul Dua Sa&]av Koul

Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer

Company Secretary
Membership No. A3814

per Mohit Gypta
Partner
Membership Number: 528337

Place: New Delhi
Date: May 15, 2024

Place: New Delhi
Date: May 15, 2024



Mankind Life Sciences Private Limited
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31,2024
All amounts are in INR lacs unless otherwise stated

b.

Equity share capital

Particulars

Amount
Equity shares of INR 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid
As at April 01, 2022 151.00
Changes In equity share capital during the year 13,200.00
As at March 21, 2023 (Restated)* 13,351.00
Changes in equity share capital during the year -
As at March 31,2024 13,351.00
Other eguity

ds
Equity ¢ P t of Reserves an urplus
Particulars eptionally convertible N . Total
preference shares Retained earnings

Balance as at April 01, 2022 4,467.79 (409.91) 4,057.88
Loss for the year - (1,239.65) (1,239.65)
Changes during the year (4,467.79) (4,467.79)
Share issue expanses - -
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of income tax - (2.41) (2.41)
Total comprehensive income for the year - {1,242.06) (5,709.85)
Issue of equity component of Optionally convertible preference shares - - -
Share issue expenses -31.50 (31.50
Balance as at March 31, 2023 (Restated)* = (1,683.47) (1,683.47)
Loss for the year = (1,980.65) {1,980,65)
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of income tax - (3.33) (3.33)
Total comprehensive income for the year - (1,983.98) (1,983.98)|
lssue of equity component of Cptionally convertible preference shares - " -
Share ssue expenses (9.00) (9.00)
Balance =s at Miarch 33,7024 - 3,676,45) {3,676.45)

“please refer note no. 38 reqarding disclosures pursuant to Ind AS-8.

The above statement changes in equity should be read in conjugation with accompanying notes.

As e our report of even date

For Bhagi Bhardwaj Gaur & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number:

7&'

007895N

per Mohit\Gupta
Partner
Membership Number; 528337

Place: New Delhi
Place: May 15, 2024

For and on behalfl of the Board of Directors

Wnd 3l

Akhlas Ahmed
Director
DIN - 08973480

Rahul Dua
Chief Financial Officer

Abh
Director
DIN - 08040683

umar Srivastava

aM‘A. C!ﬂ\. /
Sanjay Koul
Chief Executive Officer

Company Secretary
Membership Mo, A38143

Place :New Delhi
Date :May 15, 2024



Mankind Life Sciences Private Limited
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2024
£l amounts are in INR lacs unless otherwise stated

Particualrs

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
(Restated)*
A. Cash flow from Operating activities
Loss before tax {2,152.33) {1,284.22)
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows:
Depreciation and amortisation expense 67.88 25.90
Net foreign exchange differences (4.78) 1.68
Loss/ (gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipment (2.24)
Finance income (146.10) (17.68)
Finance costs 32.76 33.83
Trade and other recelvable balances written off 0.11 5.06
Allowance for expected credit loss 9.95
Other < (5.32)
Working capital adjustments;
(Increase)/ Decerease in trade receivables (141.30) (344.30)
(Increase)/ Decerease In Inventories 1,072.07 533.22
{Increase)/ Decerease in financial asset - others (1.07) (4.50)
{Increase)/ Decerease |n other asset 31.57 (122.90)
Increase/ {Decrease) in provisions 62.26 83.67
Increase/ {Decrease) in trade payable 354.46 (2,279.75}
Increase/ (Decrease) in other financial liability 1.00 -
Increase/ {Decrease) in other liability 160,95 51.48
(654.81) {3,323.83)
Income tax paid 8.28 (19.02)
Het cash used in operating activities (646.53) (3,342.85})
B. Cash flow from Investing activities
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and eguipment 319.95 =
Purchase of property, plant and equipment {25.40) (5,289.88)
Purchase of financial instruments {610.01) 1,490.74}
Proceeds from sale of financial instruments
Dividend received .
Loan to related parties (net) -
Lean to other parties (net) (32.67)
Bank deposit not considered as cash and cash eguivalents (net) = =
Interest received {finance income) 93.15 0.07
Net cash used in investing activities (254.98) (6,780.55)
Financing activities
Froceeds from issue of equity shares shares - 700.00
Proceeds from issue of preference shares - 7.,500.00
Interest paid (32.76) (33.82)
Share Issue expenses {9.00) (31.50)
Repaymeni/Procesds of/from borrowings - (3.00)
Nzt cash flows from financing activities {41.76) 8,131.68
Net increase/{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (343.27) {1,991.72)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 1,776.98 3,770.70
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 835.71 1,778.98
Components of cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks
= In current account 79.69 1,778.89
- In deposit account 755.99 -
Cash in hand 0.03 0.09
_ §35.71 1,778.98

*Please refer note no. 38 regarding disclosures pursuant to Ind AS-B.

The above statement of cash flows should be read in conjugation with accompanying notes.

As per our report of even date

For Bhagi Bhardwai Gaur & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Rea. no. 007895N
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per Mohlf Gupta
Partner

Membershily Number: 528337

Place: New Delhi
Date: May 15, 2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Mankind Lifesciences Private Limited

AN

Akhlas Ahmed
Director
DIN - 08973480

Qo

Rahul Dua
Chief Financial Officer

s a Gha
Compa ecretary
Membership No. A38143

Place: New Delhi
Date: May 15, 2024

T Srivastava
Director

DIN - 0BD4D6E83
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Sanjay Koul
Chief Executive Officer
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Mankind Life Sciences Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial stat ts for the year ended March 31,2024

1

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

Corporate information

Mankind Life Sciences Private Limited ("the Company”) (earlier known as Saburi Digital Technologies Private Limited) is a private limited company
domiciled in India and has its registered office at 208, Okhla Phase III, Delhi. The Company was incorporated on September 14, 2020 and it is a
subsidiary of Mankind Pharma Limited, a public limited company domiciled in India. The Company Is principally engaged in the trading of
pharmaceutical and health care products in India.

Material accounting policies

This note provides a list of the material accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these Indian Accounting standards (Ind-AS) financial
statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years.

Stat t of li and basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended by the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) {Amendment) Rules 2016 and
other relevant provisions of the Act and accounting principles generally accepted in India.

The financial statements are presented in INR and all values are rounded to the nearest lacs, except when otherwise stated.

Basis of presentation and preparation of separate financial statements

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments that are measured at fair values at
the end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at
the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair
value of an asset or a liability, the Company takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take those
characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for leasing transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 17 'Leases’ and
measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in Ind AS 2 or value in use in Ind AS 36
'Impairment of Assets',

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised Into Level 1, 2, or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs
to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described
as follows:

- Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement
date;

- Level 2 inputs are inputs, ather than quoted prices Included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly;
and

- Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability,

Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis using historical cost convention and on an accrual method of accounting.

Current and non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. An asset is treated as current when it
is:

Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

» Held primarily for the purpose of trading

» Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting pericd, or

» Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when;

» It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

» It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

» It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reparting period, or

» There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period

Current assets/liabilities include current portion of non-current financial assets/llabilities respectively. All other assets/ liabilities are classified as non-
current. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities,

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has
identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Indian rupee (INR), which s the functional currency of the Company.




Mankind Life Sciences Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31,2024

2.6

2.7

2.9

2,10

New and ded standards adopted by the Company

The Company applied for the first-time certain standards and amendments, which are effective for annual periods beginning on or after April 01,
2023. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023 dated March 31, 2023 to
amend the following Ind AS which are effective from April 01, 2023,

(i) Definition of Acc ting Esti - A d ts to Ind AS 8:

The amendments clarify the distinction between changes in accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies and the correction of errors. It
has also been clarified how entities use measurement techniques and inputs to develop accounting estimates.

The amendments had no impact on the Company'’s standalone financial statements.

(ii) Disclosure of Accounting Policies- Amendments to Ind AS 1:

The amendments aim to help entities provide accounting policy disclosures that are more useful by replacing the requirement for entities to disclose
their ‘significant’ accounting policies with a requirement to disclose their 'material’ accounting policies and adding guidance on how entities apply the

concept of materiality in making decisions about accounting pelicy disclosures.

The amendments have had an impact on the Company’s disclosures of accounting policies, but not on the measurement, recognition or presentation
of any items in the Company's financial statements.

(iii) Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Tr: tion - A | ts to Ind AS 12:

The amendments narrow the scope of the initial recognition exception under Ind AS 12, so that it no longer applies to transactions that give rise to
equal taxable and deductible temporary differances.

Revenue recognition

Revenues are measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Revenue is reduced for rebates, trade discounts and other
sirilar allowances.

Ind AS 115 'Revenue from Contracts with Customers’ was notified on 28 March 2018 and establishes a five-step model to account for revenue
arising from contracts with customers. Under Ind AS 115, revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration to which an entity
expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer,

Sale of goods

Revenue from sale of goods are recognised on transfer of significant risks and rewards of ownership to the buyer, where recovery of the
consideration is probable, the associated costs and possible return of goods can be estimated reliably and there is no continuing management
involvement with the goods and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably. The transfer of significant risks and rewards of ownership
generally coincides with the delivery of goods to customers, Revenue from sale of goods includes excise duty but exclude sales tax and value added
tax.

Qther Revenues

(a) Interest Income

For all debt instruments measured either at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income, intarest income is recorded using
the effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or recaipts over the expected life of the
financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or to the amortised cost of a financial
liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the
financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses. Interest income
is included in other Income in the statement of profit and loss,

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and the net realisable value after providing for obsolescence and other losses, where considered
necessary. Cost of inventories includes all costs and overheads in bringing the inventories to their present condition. Cost is arrived at moving
weighted average basis. Work-in-process and finished goods include appropriate proportion of overheads

Met realisable value represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and cost necessary to make sale.

Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using indirect method as set out in Ind AS -7 "Statement of Cash Flows", whereby profit/loss before extraordinary items and
tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash
flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated based on the available information.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term balances (with an original maturity of three manths
or less from the date of acquisition), highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to
insignificant risk of changes in value,
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2.12

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.

The initial cost of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, and any
directly attributable costs of bringing an asset to working condition and lecation for its intended use. It also includes the initial estimate of the costs
of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located, wherever applicable. Items such as spares are capitalized when
they meet the definition of property, plant and equipment.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate items (major
components) of property, plant and equipment. Likewise, on initial recognition, expenditure to be incurred towards major inspections and overhauls
are identified as a separate component and depreciated over the expected period till the next overhaul expenditure.

Subsequent costs and disposal

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of property, plant and equipment is added to its book value only if it increases the future economic
benefits from the existing asset beyond its previously assessed standard of performance/life. All other expenses on existing property, plant and
equipment, including day-to-day repair and maintenance expenditure and cost of replacing parts, are charged to the statement of profit and loss for
the period during which such expenses are incurred.

Gains and losses on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds from disposal with the carrying
amount of property, plant and equipment, and are recegnized net within other income/other expenses in statement of profit and loss.

Capital work in progress

Assets in the course of construction are capitalized in capital work In progress account. At the point when an asset is capable of operating in the
manner intended by management, the cost of construction is transferred to the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment. Costs
associated with the commissioning of an asset are capitalised until the period of commissioning has been completed and the asset is ready for its
intended use.

Depreciation and amaortisation

Depreciation an Property, plant and equipment has been provided on the straight-line method (SLM) to allocate their cost, net of their residual
values, as per useful life prescribed in Schedule II to the Act. nent’s nent of independent technical evaluation/advice takes into
account, inter alia, the nature of the assets, the estimated usage of the assets, the operating conditions of the assets, past history of replacement
and maintenance support, The depreciation method, asset’s residual values and useful llves are reviewed, and adjusted If appropriate, at the end of
each reparting period prospectively.

Depreciation on tangible fixed assets has been provided on the straight line method as per the useful life prascribed in Schedule II to the Companies
Act, 2013,

Additions on account of insurance spares, additions/extensions forming an Integral part of existing plants and the revised carrying amount of the
assets identified as impaired, are depreciated over residual life of the respective asset.

An item of property, plant and equipment is dereocgnised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in statement of profit and loss.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year and changes in estimates, if any, are accounted for
prospectively.

Impairment of tangible assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of all of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether
there is any Indication based on internal/ external factors that those assets have suffered an Impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). When it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an individual asset, the company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or
otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the assets for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than Its carrying amount, the carrying amount of asset (or
cash-generating unit) is raduced to its recoverable amount, An impairment loss is recognised immediately in statement of profit and loss,

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the assets (or cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of
its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset {or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in
statement of profit and loss.
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2,14

2,15

2,16

Foreign currency transactions and translations

Items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the primary econemic environment in which the
Company operates ("the functional currency’), The financial statements are presented in Indian rupee (INR), which |s the Company's functional and
presentation currency.

Transactions In currencies other than the functional currency are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rates ruling at the date of
the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in other currencies are translated Into the functional currency at exchange rates
prevailing on the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated In other currencies and measured at historical cost or fair value
are transiated at the exchange rates prevailing on the dates on which such values were determined.

All exchange differences are included in statement of profit and loss except any exchange differences on maonetary items designated as an effective
hedging instrument of the currency risk of designated forecasted sales or purchases, which are recognized in the other comprehensive income.

Employee benefits

Employee benefits include provident fund, employee state insurance scheme.

Defined contribution plan

The Company's contribution to provident fund and employee state insurance scheme are considered as defined contribution plans and are charged
as an expense based on the amount of contribution required to be made and when services are rendered by the employees.

Short-term employee benefits
The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the services rendered by employees are recognised
during the year when the employees render the service.

Leases
The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, If the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time In exchange for consideration,

Company as a lessea

The Company's lease asset classes primarily comprise of lease for land and building. The Company applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease
payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

The company has entered into lease agreement for builiding which has been assessed as operating lease and accordingly the company has
recognised rental expenses on a straight line basis aver the tenure of lease.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit / (loss) after tax (including the post tax effect of extraordinary items, if any) by the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit / (loss) after
tax (including the post tax effect of extraordinary items, if any) as adjusted for dividend, interast and other charges to expense or income (net of
any attributable taxes) relating to the dilutive potential equity shares, by the weighted average number of equity shares cansidered for deriving
basic earnings per share and the weighted average number of equity shares which could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential
equity shares, Potential equity shares are deemed to be dilutive only if their conversion to equity shares would decrease the net profit per share
from continuing ordinary operations. Potential dilutive equity shares are deemed to be converted as at the beginning of the period, unless they have
been issued at a later date. Dilutive potential equity shares are determined independently for each period presented. The number of equity shares
and potentially dilutive equity shares are adjusted for share splits / reverse share splits and bonus shares, as appropriate.

Taxes on income

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in statement of profit and loss except to the extent that it relates items
recognised directly in equity or in Other Comprehensive Income.

Current income tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year, Taxable profit differs from 'profit before tax' as reported in the statement of profit
and loss because of items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The
current tax is calculated using tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Current tax assets and liahilities are offset only if, the Company:
i} has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts; and
it} intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously,

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the Balance sheet method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabllities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date,

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses,
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax lossas can be utilised,

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all er part of the deferred tax assat to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessad at each
reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the liability is
settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.
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Deferred tax assets on unsued tax losses are recognised only to the extent of net Deferred tax Liabilities.

for a

Current and deferred tax are recognised In statement of profit and loss, except when they relate to iterns that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprenhensive income or
directly in equity respectively.

Provi and conting:

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. When the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is
recognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement Is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the
statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

1f the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows to net present value
using an appropriate pre-tax discount rate that reflacts current market assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks
specific to the liability. Unwinding of the discount is recognized In statement of profit and loss as a finance cost. Provisions are reviewed at each
reporting date and are adjusted to reflect the current best estimate,

A contingent liability Is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-cccurrence of
one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognised because it is not probable that
an outflow of resources will be required to settle the abligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that
cannot be recognised because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in
the financial statements.

In the normal course of business, contingent liabilitias may arise from litigation and other claims against the Company. There are certain obligations
which management has concluded, based on all avallable facts and circumstances, are not probable of payment or are very difficult to quantify
reliably, and such obligations are treated as Contingent liabilities and disclosed in the notes but are not reflected as liabilities in the financial
statements. Although there can be no assurance regarding the final outcome of the legal proceedings in which the Company invelved, it is net
expected that such contingencies will have a material effect on its financial position or profitability.

Contingent assets are not recognised but disclosed in the financial statements when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Insurance claims

Insurance claims are accounted for on the basis of claims admitted / expected to be admitted and to the extent that the amount recoverable can be
measured reliably and It is reasonable to expect ultimate collection,

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments,

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acguisition or issue
of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or
deducted from the fair valus of the financlal assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition, Transaction costs directly attributable
to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through statement of profit and loss are recognised immediately in statement
of profit and loss.

Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured In their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value, depending on the classification of
the financial assets,

Classification of financial assets

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at amortised cost less Impairment loss (except for debt investments
that are designated as at fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition):
= the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash flows; and
+ the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value.
Amortised cost and effective interest method

The effective Interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest income over the relevant
period, The effective interest rate Is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the debt
instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recegnition.

Income |s recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than those financial assets classified as at FVTPL. Interest income is
recognised in profit or loss and is included in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Investments in equity instruments are classified as at FVTPL, unless the Company irrevocably elects on initial recognition to present subseqguent
changes in fair value in other comprehensive income for equity instruments which are not held for trading.

A financial asset may be designated as at FVTPL upon Initial recognition if such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or
recognition Inconsistency that would arise from measuring assets or liabilities or recognising the gains and losses on them on different bases. The
Company has not designated any debt instrument as at FVTPL,

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, with any gains or losses arising on re-measurement
recognised in statement of profit and loss. The net gain or loss reccgnised in statement of profit and loss is included in the "other gains and losses’
line item.
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Impairment of financial assets

The Company measures the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on
that financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition. If the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Company measures the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit
losses.

However, for trade receivables or contract assets that result in relation to revenue from contracts with customers, the Company measures the loss
allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expeacted credit losses.

When making the assessment of whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the Company uses the change
in the risk of a default occurring over the expected life of the financial instrument Instead of the change in the amount of expected credit lasses. To
make that assessment, the Company compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrurment as at the date of initial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable information, that is
available without undue cost or effort, that is indicative of significant increases in credit risk since initial recognition.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Company derecegnises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial
asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another party. If the Company neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Company recognises its retained Interest in
the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a
transferred financial asset, the Company continues to recognise the financial asset.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received
and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive Income and accumulated in equity is recognised in
profit or loss if such gain or loss would have otherwise been recognized in profit or loss on disposal of that financial asset.

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety (e.g. when the Company retains an option to repurchase part of a transferred asset),
the Company allocates the previous carrying amount of the financial asset between the part it continues to recognise under continuing involvement,
and the part it no longer recognises on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts on the date of the transfer. The difference between the
carrying amount allocated to the part that is no longer recognised and the sum of the consideration received for the part no longer recognised and
any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss if such gain or loss
would have otherwise been recognized in profit or loss on disposal of that financial asset. A cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income is allocated between the part that continues to be recognised and the part that is no longer recognised on the basis of
the relative fair values of those parts,

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a Company are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument,

Equity instruments

An equity instrument Is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
Instruments issued by a Company entity are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct Issue costs,

Repurchase of the Company's own equity instruments is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss on
the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Company's own equity instrumeants.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method or at FVTPL, However, financial liabilities that
arise when a transfer of a financial asset does not qualify for derecognition or when the continuing involvement approach applies, financial guarantee
contracts issued by the Company, and commitments issued by the Company to provide a loan at below-market interest rate are measured in
accordance with the specific accounting policies set out below,

Financlal liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is either held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL,
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Financial liabilities at FVTPL
Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is either held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:
= it has been incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing it in the near term; or

* on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Company manages together and has a recent actual pattern
of short-term profit-taking; or

= it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument.

A financial liability other than a financial liability held for trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon Initial recognition if:
= such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would otherwise arise; or

+ the financial liability forms part of a Company of financial assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed and its performance is evaluated
on a falr value basis, in accordance with the Company’s documented risk management or investment strategy, and information about the Company
is provided Internally on that basis; or

* it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives, and Ind AS 109 permits the entire combined contract to be designated
as at FVTPL in accordance with Ind AS 109,

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in statement of profit and loss.
The net gain or loss recognised in statement of profit and loss incorporates any interest paid on the financial liability and is included in the 'other
gains and losses' line item,

However, for non-held-for-trading financial liabilities that are designated as at FVTPL, the amount of change in the fair value of the financial liability
that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability is recognised in other comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the effects of
changes in the liability's credit risk in other comprehensive income would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in statement of profit and loss.
The remaining amount of change in the fair value of liability is recognised in statement of profit and loss. Changes in fair value attributable to a
financial liability’s credit risk that are recognised in other comprehensive income are not subsequently reclassified to statement of profit and loss.

Gains or losses on financial guarantee contracts and loan commitments issued by the Company that are designated by the Company as at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised in statement of profit and loss.

Financial liabilities subsequently measured at amortised cost

Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent
accounting periods. The carrying amounts of financial liabilities that are subsequently measured at amortised cost are determined based on the
effective interest method. Interest expense that is not capitalised as part of costs of an asset is included in the ‘finance costs' line item.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the relevant
period, The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial
liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Foreign exchange gains and losses

For financial liabilities that are denominated in a foreign currency and are measured at amortised cost at the end of each reporting perlod, the
foreign exchange gains and losses are determined based on the amortised cost of the instruments and are recognised in the ‘other gains and losses’
line item in the statement of profit and loss,

The fair value of financial liabilities denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that foreign currency and translated at the spat rate at the
end of the reporting peried. For financial liabilities that are measured as at FVTPL, the foreign exchange component forms part of the fair value gains
or losses and is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company's obligations are discharged, cancelled or they expire. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in statement of
profit and loss.

Operating cycle

Based on the nature of the operations and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash or cash equivalents,
the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as twelve months for the purpose of current non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

The preparation of these financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income, expenses and disclosures of contingent assets
and liabilities at the date of these financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses for the years presented. Actual results
may differ from these estimates under different assumptions and conditions.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised In the period in which
the estimate |s revised and future periods affected,

In particular, information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting policies that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements are included in the following accounting policies and/or notes:
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Critical esti es and judg in applying accounting policies

The folowing are the critical judgements, apart from those estimations that the management has made in the process pf applying the Company
Accounting Policies and that have most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements.

Provisions and contingencies

The significant capital commitments in relation to various capital projects are not recognized in the balance sheet. In the normal course of business,
contingent liabilities may arise from litigation and other claims against the Company. Guarantees are also provided in the normal course of business.
There are certain obligations which management has concluded, based on all available facts and circumstances, are not probable of payment or are
very difficult to quantify reliably, and such obligations are treated as contingent liabilities and disclosed in the notes but are not reflected as liabilities
in the financial statements. Although there can be no assurance regarding the final outcome of the legal proceedings in which the Company
involved, it Is not expected that such contingencies will have a material effect on its financial position or profitability.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

Some of the Company's assets and liabilities are measured at fair value for financial reporting purposes, The fair values of financial assets and
financial liabllities recorded in the balance sheet in respect of which quoted price in active markets are available are measured using valuation
technigues, The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is
required in establishing fair values. Judgments include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in
assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial Instruments,

Impairment of assets

In assessing the property, plant and equipment and intangible assets for impairment, factors leading to significant reduction in profits such as
changes in commodity prices, the Coampany’s business plans and changes in regulatory environment are taken into consideration, The carrying value
of the assets of a cash generating unit (CGU) is compared with the recoverable amount of those assets, that is, the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. Recoverable value is based on the management estimates of commodity prices, market demand and supply, economic
and regulatory climates, long-term plan, discount rates and other factors, Any subsequent changes to cash flow due to changes in the
abovementioned factors could impact the carrying value of the assets,

Useful life of property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets as disclosed above are depreciated over their useful economic lives. Management reviews the
useful economic lives at least once a year and any changes could affect the depreciation rates prospectively and hence the asset carrying values.
The Company also reviews Its property, plant and equipment, for possible impairment if there are events or changes in circumstances that indicate
that carrying values of the assets may not be recoverable. In assessing the property, plant and equipment for impairment, factors leading to
significant reduction in profits such as changes in commodity prices, the Company's business plans and changes in regulatory environment are
taken into consideration,

The carrying value of the assets of a cash generating unit (CGU) is compared with the recoverable amount of those assets, that is, the higher of fair
value less costs of disposal and value in use. Recoverable value is based on the management estimates of commeodity prices, market demand and
supply, economic and regulatary climates, long-term plan, discount rates and other factors, Any subsequent changes to cash flow due to changes in
the above mentioned factors could impact the carrying value of the assets.

Contingencies and commitments

In the normal course of business, contingent liabilities may arlse from litigation, taxation and other claims against the Company. A tax provision is
recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that the Company will be required to settle that
obligation.

Where It is gement's nent that the outcome cannot be reliably quantified or is uncertain the claims are disclosed as contingent liabllities
unless the likelihood of an adverse outcome Is remote. Such liabilities are disclosed in the notes but are not provided for in the financial statements.

When considering the classification of a legal or tax cases as probable, possible or remote there |s judgement involved. This pertains to the
application of the legislation, which in certain cases is based upon management's intarpretation of country specific tax law, in particular India, and
the likelihood of settlement. Management uses in-house and external legal professionals to inform their decision.

Although there can be no assurance regarding the final outcome of the legal proceedings, the Company does not expect them to have a materially
adverse impact on the Company’s financial position or profitability. The liabilities which are assassad as possible and hence are not recognised in
these financial statements,

Measurement of defined benefit obligations

The obligation arising from the defiend benefit plan is detremined on the basis of actuarial assumptions. Key actuarial assumptions include discount
rate, trends in salary escalation and vested future benefits and life expectancy, The discount rate is determined with reference to market yields at
the end of the reporting period on the government bonds. The period to maturity of the underlying bonds correspond to probable maturity of the
post-employment benefit obligations.
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2,23 Key sources of estimation uncertaininty

(a)

(b}

(©

Taxes

Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of complex tax regulations, changes In tax laws, and the amount and timing of future
taxable income, Given the wide range of business relationships and the long-term nature and complexity of existing contractual agreements,
differences arising between the actual results and the assumptions made, or future changes to such assumptions, could necessitate future
adjustments to tax income and expense already recorded, The Company establishes provisions, based on reasonable estimates, The amount
of such provisions is based on various factors, such as experience of previous tax audits and differing interpretations of tax regulations by the
taxable entity and the responsible tax authority. Such differences of interpretation may arise on a wide variety of issues depending on the
conditions prevailing in the respective domicile of the companies.

Impairment of Financial assets

The impalrment provisions of financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates. the Company uses
judgment in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on Company's past history ,existing
market conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.

Impairment of non-Financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired, If any indication exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset's recoverable amount. An assets recoverable amount is
the higher of an asset's CGU'S fair value less cost of dispasal and its value in use, It is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset
does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or Company's of assets. Where the carrying amount of
an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use , the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal,
recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used, These
calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, or other fair value indicators.
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3 Property. olant and eguipment

Freshold land Building Computers Office PFlant and Furniture and Wehicle Total Capital Work in
equipment machinery fixtures Progress

Cost/ carrying value:
Balance as at April 01, 2022 - - - ¥ * - bt - 51225
Addinzns 4,360,71 454,19 11.40 14.40 246,88 156.05 5,283.63 905,69
Disposals/ adjustments = - e = = = = (297.38)
Balance as at March 31, 2023 4,360.71 494.19 1140 14.40 246,98 156.05 - 5,283.63 520.56
Additions a 28.88 = 1.08 546 1.02 0.74 3ras =
Dispesals! adiustmants {314.77) = = = (2 (G.63) = (317.92) {483,03)
Balance as at March 31,2024 523.07 11.40 1538 240.82 156,44 0.74 5,002,839 38,51
Accumulated depreciation;
Balance as at April 01, 2022 * faj - = = -
Depraciation axpanse - 4,03 .79 .45 5.87 4.75 25.90 -
Disposals/ adjustments = = = = = -
Balance as at March 31, 2023 = 4.03 1.79 3.4 5,87 4,75 = 25,90 -
Degreciation expense - 16.49 3.61 3.50 15.80 14.87 oo7 54.34 -
Disposals/ adjustrmants - = = - (0,15} (CL05) - {0.21) -
Balance as at March 31,2024 = 20,52 540 12.96 21,52 19.56 0.07 80,03 =
Balance as at March 31,2024 4,045.94 502.55 6.00 52 228.30 136.88 0.67 4,922.86 38.53
Balance as at March 31. 2023 4,360.71 490.16 9.61 4.94 24101 151.30 - 5.257.73 520.56
Capital k=il ageing

As ot March 31,2024

Amount in CWIP for a period of

Particulars Less than 1 year A3 yayn ik i More than 3 years Total

3 Prodacts In oroarass = 38.53 - - 33,53

Total = 38.53 - - 38,53

As at March 31, 2023

Amount in CWIF for a poriod of

Farticuture Less than 1 year =3 yads 4% Yo More than 3 years Tatal

L Projects in progress 520.56 = - - 520.56

Total 520,55 = - = 520.56

Tite deeds of Immavable Proparty hekt in name of the Company :

Frashald land under dispute, Title deed in not held in the name of the company as per fallowing details:

Whather title deed helder is a promater,

Property held since which date

Reason for not being held in the name of the

Note:

Particulars Title deed held in the name of
director or relative of promoter /director or company
employee of promoter/director
t::‘;‘a‘”'“ Iairmuirthy Minarals and Chemicals Private Limited Mo o1.01,2022 Ratar fote bakiw
Bullding en Leasehald Land TRE o PENE W iFE]

The said property was sold by Bank of Barads in faveur of the Company under Securitisation and Peconstruction of Financial Aseets and Enforcament of Sacurity Interast Act, 2002 on "As |s whara Is and as Is whatever Is basis and without recourse . The transfer af
lease agresmant in favour of the Company has been disputed by the government agencies In raspect of panding PF / ESIC dues fram tha leasa title halder of the praparty “Jaimurthy Minerals and Chemicals Privats Limited”.
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4 Right-of-use assets

Leasehold Land Total
As at 01 April 2023
Additions 462.79 462.79
Disposals - -
Adjustments -
Balance as at March 31,2024 462.79 462.79
As at 01 April 2023 - -
Elimination on disposals of assets
Amortisation expense 13,54 13.54
Disposals S -
Balance as at March 31,2024 13.54 13.54
Carrying amount
Balance as at March 31,2023 - -
Balance as at March 31,2024 449,25 449.25
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5 Investments As at As at
March 31,2024 31 March 2023
{Restated)*
Face Value Units/ shares Amount Units/ sh Amount
per share ) e

Non- Current
(a) Investment in unquoted equity instruments - at cost, fully

paid up

Subsidiaries

Upakarma Ayurveda Private Limited (refer note a below) INR 10 16,23,984 400.74 16,23,984 400.74
Total 400.74 400.74

{b) Investment in Non Convertible Debentures of subsidiary
company {unquoted) - at amortised cost

Upakarma Ayurveda Private Limited (refer note b and c below) INR 1,00,000 1,700 1,117.43 1,090 733.14
1,117.43 733.14
1,51 4 1,133.88
Notes:
a. During the year ended March 31, 2023, the Company has subscribed 1,623,984 fully paid up equity shares of face value of INR 10 each of its subsidiary i.e. Upakarma
Ayurveda Private Limited.
b. The Company had subscribed to 610 (previous year 1,090) Non Convertible redeemable Debentures of face value of INR 1,00,000 each carrying coupon of 0,10% per
annum of its subsidiary |.e. Upakarma Ayurveda Private Limited. Such debentures shall be redeemed on October 27, 2032 or as such time as may be decided by the Board

of Directors,

*Please refer note no. 38 regarding disclosures pursuant to Ind AS-B.
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As at As at
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
(Restated)*
6 Other financial assets

Non-Current
(Unsecured and considered good)
Financial assets carried at amortised cost
Security deposits (refer note (a) below) 10.42 9.29
Non convertible debentures at amortised cost (refer note (b) 652.82 374.20
below)

663.24 383.49

*Please refer note no. 38 regarding disclosures pursuant to Ind AS-8.

Note:
(a) It includes interest accrued amounting to INR 0.27 lacs and INR 0.21 as at March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023

respectively.
(b) Investment in non convertible debentures includes interest accrued of INR 70.24 lacs and INR 17.35 lacs for the year
ended March 31, 2024 and for the year ended March 31, 2023 respectively.

7 Income tax assets and liabilities As at As at
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023

Income tax assets
Income tax receivable (net of provisions) 11.98 20.26

Income tax assets / (liabilities) 11.98 20.26
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Deferred tax balances
Deferred tax liabilities
Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets (net)

As at
March 31,2024

As at
March 31, 2023

(17.01) (7.87)
235.80 53.86
218.7 45.99

Year ended March 31,2024 Opening Recognised in Recognised in other Closing balance
Balance Profit or loss comprehensive
Income
Deferred tax liabilities in relation to
Property, plant and equipment (7.87) (9.14) (17.01)
(7.87) (9.14) - (17.01)
Deferred tax assets in relation to
Provision for employee benefits 14.44 10.23 1.12 25.79
Allowance for expected credit loss 2.50 - 2.50
Provision for expected sales return 6.04 6.04 - 12.08
Provision for breakage & expiry 33.38 161,35 - 194.73
MSME Payable - 0.70 - 0.70
53.86 180.82 1.12 235.80
Deferred tax assets (net) 45.99 171.68 1.12 218.79
Year ended 31 March 2023 Opening Recognised in Recognised in other Closing balance
Balance Profit or loss comprehensive
Income
Deferred tax liabilities in relation to
Property, plant and equipment = (7.87) = (7.87)
- (7.87) - (7.87)
Deferred tax assets in relation to
Provision for employee benefits 0.61 13.02 0.81 14.44
Provision for expected sales return = 6.04 - 6.04
Provision for breakage & expiry - 33.38 - 33.38
0.61 52.44 0.81 53.86
Deferred tax assets (net) 0.61 44.57 0.81 45.99

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are being offset as they relate to taxes on income levied by the same governing taxation laws.
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Other assets

As at
March 31,2024

As at
March 31, 2023

Non-Current

(unsecured and considered good)

Capital advances 5.40 -

5.40 -

Current

(unsecured and considered good)

Prepaid expenses 13.55 31.75

Advances to vendors 115.11 9.89

Advances to employees 1.66 15.40

Balances with Government authorities 625.52 819.79

Government grant receivable 89.42 -
845.26 876.83

This space has been left blank intentionally
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10 Inventories

Raw materials

As at
March 31,2024

As at
March 31, 2023

hand 134.23 230.33
In transit 60.52 =
Finished goods 57.57 5.53
Stock in trade

In hand 988.74 2,338.62

In transit 259.73 1.68
Stores and spares 4.09 0.79

150385 357695

The cost of inventories recognised as an expense includes INR 1300.13 lacs and INR 148.21 lacs for the year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 in respect of write downs of inventory to net realisable

value on account of expiry and breakage of the inventories, There has been no reversal of such write downs in current year, These adjustments were included in changes In inventories.

11 Trade receivables

As at
March 31,2024

As at
March 31, 2023

Unsecured

Considerad good 742.76 416,25

Considered good - related parties (refer note 35) 21.66 205,98
764.42 623,23

Less: Allowance against expected credit loss (9.95) .
754,47 §23,23

11.1 Trade Receivables ageing schedule

As at March 31,2024

Curent but Dutstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Total
not due Less than 6 Months 6 months - 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years

Undisputed Trade Recalvables — considerad good 427.63 315.96 20.03 0.80 764.42
Undisputed Trade Receivables - which have significant - - - - = -
increase in credit risk

Undisputed Trade recelvable - credit impaired - - - _
Disputed Trade raceivables - considered good - - - - - < £
Disputed Trade receivables — which have significant Increase = ~ - - - .
in credit risk

Disputed Trade receivables — cradit impaired ~ - - - - - r

427.63 315.96 20.03 ¢} E i = 764,42
As at March 31, 2023
Particulars Curent but Dutstanding for following periods from due date of payment -
not due Less than 6 Months 6 months — 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 yoars More than 3 years

Undisputed Trade Recelvables - considered aood 531.63 88.92 2.03 0.65 - - 623.23
Undisputed Trade Recelvables = which have slgnificant = - - - - - i
Increase in credit risk

Undisputed Trade receivable - credit Impalred S 5 - - -
Disputed Trade recelvables - considered good = - - - - -
Disputed Trade receivables ~ which have significant increase - - - - =
In credit risk

Disputed Trade recaivables - credit impairad - - - - - - =

531.63 28,92 2,03 0.65 = = 523,23
@ The average credit period to customers ranges upto 60 days. No interest is charged on trade receivables upto the due date from the date of the invoice. Thereafter, interest is charged at 14% per annum on
the outstanding balance,
b, The Company has used a practical expedient by computing the expected credit loss e for trade reca| based on historical credit loss experienca and adjusted for forward looking information.

Recelvabies are deemed to be past due or Impaired with reference to the Company’s normal terms and conditions of business. These terms and conditions are determined on a case Lo case basis with
reference to the customer's cradit quality and prevailing market conditions.

12 Cash and cash equivalents

Balances with banks

As at
March 31,2024

As at
March 31, 2023

- In currant account 79.69 1,778.89
- In deposit account (with original maturity of 3 months or less) 755.959 -
Cash in hand 0.03 0.09

B35.71 1,778.98
Note:

A,  Bank deposits includes interest accrued and not due on deposit account with banks amounting to INR 5.99 lacs and Nil as at 31st March 2024 and as at 31 March 2023 respectively,

13 Loans
Current
{unsecured and considered good)
Loan to employees

32.67

32.67
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14

Share capital

Authorised
§0,00,000 equity shares of INR 10 2ach

{March 31, 2023: 90,00,000 equity shares of INR 10 each)

12,60,00,000 preference shares of INR 10 each

(Mareh 31, 2023 : 12,60,00,000 preference shares of INR 10 each)

Issued, subscribed and fully paid up

85,10,000 equity shares of INR 10 each fully paid up

(March 31, 2023 : 85,10,000 equity shares of INR 10 each)

12,50,00,000 0.01% optionally convertible non cumulative reedemable preference

shares (QCRPS) of INR 10 each fully paid up

{March 31, 2023 : 12 50,00,000 equity shares of INR 10 =ach)

Notes:

(i} Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to Equity Shares
The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of INR 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. In the event of
liquidation of the Company, holder of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amount. The distribution

will be In propertion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

(i)

Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to Preference Shares

As at As at
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
(Restated)*

900,00 900.00

12,600.00 12,600.00
13,500.00 13,500.00
B51.00 851.00

12,500.00 12,500.00
13,351.00 13,351.00

Each convertible preferance share has a par valus of INR 10 and is convertible at the option of the company into Equity shares of the Company on the basis of ane aquity
share for every one preference shares held, Any preference shares not converted will be redeemed on Novernber 30, 2041 at fair value of shares of Mankind Life Sciences
Private Limited on the date of redemption, or issue price of OCPS i.e, Rs. 10/- for each OCPS, whichever Is higher. The preference shares carry a dividend of 0.01% per
annum. The dividend rights are non-cumulative. The preference shares rank ahead of the equity shares In the svent of a liquidation. The presentation of the lability and
equity portions of these shares is explained in the summary of significant accounting policy.

(iii)

Reconciliation of the number of shares and t ding at the beginning and at the end of the year:
a) Issued equity capital
As at As at
March 31,2024 Morch31,2023
Particulars b Number Amount
Equity shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 85,10,000 85100 15,10,000 151.00
Add : Issued during the year - - 70,00,000 700.00
Equity shares outstanding at the end of the year 85,10,000 851.00 85,10,000 851.00
b) 0.01% Optionally Convertible Non Ci d ble Pref: Shares (OCRPS) of INR 10 each issued and fully paid

As at As at
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
_Particulars Number Amount Amount
Preference shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 12,50,00,000 12,500.00 5,00,00,000 5,000.00
Add : Issued during the year - = 7,50.00,000 7,500.00
Preference shares outstanding at the end of the year 12,50,00,000 12,500,00 12,50,00,000 12,500.00
{iv} Details of shares held by the holding company and/or their subsidiaries/associates
As at As at
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Particulars umbe Amount Amount
Mankind Pharma Limited
- Equity shares B5,10,000 B51.00 85,10,000 851.00
- n.01% Optionally Convertible Non Cumulative 12,50,00,000 12,500.00 12,50,00,000 12,500.00
Reademable Preference Shares (BCRPS)
(v} Shares held by each sharebelder holding more than 5 percent shares:
As at As at
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Numbers %o holdi 5 e Idi 9
Equity shares
Mankind Pharma Limited (along with nominee shareholder) 85,10,000 100% 85,10,000 100%
85,10,000 100% 85,10,000 100%
Preference shares
Mankind Pharma Limited 12.50.00.000 100% 12,50.00.000 100%
13,50,00,000 100% 12,50,00,000 100%
(vi) Increase in authorised share capital
The Company has increased its Authorised Share Capital from INR 10,000.00 Lacs to INR 13,500.00 Lacs vide shareholders’ app | at the Extraordinary Meeting
(EGM} held on September 28, 2022,
{vii) Shares held by each promoter:

Equity Shares
(As at March 31,2024

5.No| Promoter Name

Mumber of shares held

% of total shares

%o change during
the year

1|Mankind Pharma Limited

85,09 999

100%

2| Arjun Juneja {en Behalf an Mankind
Pharma Limited]

1 =

As at March 31, 2023 [Restated]}*

S.No| Promoter Name

Number of shares held

%o of total shares

®o change during
the year

Mankind Pharmma Limited

100%

1
2| Arjun Juneja {on Behalf an Mankind
Pharma Limited)

B5 09,999
1

*Please refer nota no. 38 reqarding disclosures pursuant to Ind AS-8.
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15 Other equity

Retained earnings (refer note 15.1)

15.1 Retained earnings

Balance at the beginning of the year
Loss for the year

Other comprehensive income

Share issue expenses

Balance at the end of the year

*Please refer note no. 38 regarding disclosures pursuant to Ind AS-8.

As at As at
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
{Restated)*
(3,676.45) (1,683.47)
(3,676.45) (1,683.47)
As at As at

March 31,2024

March 31, 2023

(1,683.47) (409.91)
(1,980.65) (1,239.65)
(3.23) (2.41)
(9.00) (31.50)
(3,676.45) (1,683.47)



Mankind Life Sciences Private Limited
MNotes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31,2024

All amou are i ess o ise

16 Provisions

Non-current
Provision for
Provision for gratuity

Current

Provision for emplovee benefits
Provision for compensated absences
Provision for aratuity

Other provisions
Provision for expected sales return (Refer note(a) below)

Details of other provisions
(a) Provision for expeected sales return

As at
March 31,2024

As at
March 31, 2023

35.58 21.82
35.5 21.82
70.96 42.34
L48 1.13
47,98 24.00
120.42 67.47

and the mo

As per best estimate of the t, provision has been made towards probable return of goods from ¢

Balance as at the beginning of the year
Addition during the year

Utilised during the year

Balance as at the end of the year

in provision for sales return |s as follows:

As at As at
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
24.00 =
23.98 24.00
47.98 24.00

Provision for expected sales return: A provision is recognized for expected sales return on preducts sold by the Company during the year based on the past experiences of level of return. It is
expected that significant level of returns will be incurred in next period. Assumptions used to calculate said provision are based on current sales level and current information available about sales

return.
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17  Trade pavables As at As at
March 31,2024 March 21, 2023
Current
i, total outstanding dues of micre enterprises and small enterprises 14.54 2.59
il tetal outstanding dues of crediters othar than micro enterprises and small entesprises 1,177.89 84016
1,192.43 842.75

171

ol

ia

19

Trade Payable ageing schedula
= EBilled a2 g p
& Unbille anding for jowing periods ue date of payme,
Particulars due Notdue Rk year 12 years 2-3 years More than 3 years SHetal
Total cutstanding dues of micro enterorises and small enterprises £ 11.77 277 - - - 14.54
Total cutstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 151.02 544 51 80.50 1.56 0,30 i 1,177.89
Disouted dues of micre enterprises and small enterprises = * - = - = =
Disputad dues of crediters other than micro enterprises and small enterprises = " = - - <
Total 151.02 956.29 83.26 1.56 0.30 - 1,192.43
As at March 31, 2023 {| d)* - - : - —
i Unbilled Outstanding for following periods from dus date of payment I
Particiars due For.dus Less than 1 §nr 1-2 years 2-3 years Mare than 3 years !
Total outstanding dugs of micro enterprises and small enterorises - 0,02 2 - - - 2.59
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 124.64 493.29 221.39 o4 " o 840,15
Disputed dues of micro enterprisas and small enterprises = = = = - -
Disputed duss of creditors gther than micro enterprises and small enterprises - - - - - -
Total 124.64 493.31 223.96 0.84 = - B42.75
Note:

The average credit oeriod on ourchases is up to 90 davs for the Company. The Company however ensures that all pavables are paid within the ore aareed credit limits.
Trade Payables include due to related parties INR 161.96 Lacs (March 31, 2023 : INR 96.05),
Ta the extent information available with the Company there are no amounts payable to suppliers and service providers covered under Micro Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006 2nd also thers is no amownt
paid or payable against interest thereon and accordingly no disclosurs in that respect has been given In these financial statemants

Information as required to be fumished as per section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act) for the year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 is given below. This
infarmation has bean detsrmined ta the extent such parties have been Identified on the basis of information available with the Comipany.

(1) The principal amount and the interest dus thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier
covered under MSMED Act:

= Principal ameunt

= Inkerest thereon

{il) The amaunt of interest paid by the buysr in terms of section 16, of tha MSMED Act,
2006 along with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the
appointed day during each accownting year

(it} The ameunt of interest due and payable for the peried of delay In making payment
{which have been paid but beyond the appeinted déy during the year) but without
&tding the interest specified urder this Act

() Thee amount of intérest accrued and remaining unpald at the end of each accounting
year

{v} The amaunt of furthsr interest remaining due and payabls sven in the succeeding
years, unkil such dakte when the intersst duss above are sctually paid to the seall
anterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a daductible expanditure under section 23
of the MSMED Act, 2006

As at As at
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
14.54 2.5%

Due to Micra, Small and Madium Enterprisas have basn determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the baisi of information collected by the management. This has been relied upon by the auditor,

Other financial liabilities

Currant
Capital Creditors
Trade/security deposits from vendors and others

Other liabilities

Current

Contract liabilities
Statutory liabilities
Others

As at As at
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
= 2.06
546.00 545.00
546.00 547.06

As at

March 31,2024 March 31, 2023

159,75 3221
EFSCTa] 38.51
1.08 0.55
232.23 71.27
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Year ended
March 31,2024

Year ended
March 31, 2023

20 Revenue from operations
20.1 Revenue from contracts with customers
Sale of products 6,327.39 4,901.36
6,327.39 4,901.36
{a) Disaggregated revenue information
Set out below is the disaggregation of the Company's revenue from contracts with customers:
Segment
Year ended Year ended
Particulars
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
(i) Type of goods/services
Sale of pharmaceutical products 5,891.84 4,471.08
Sale of Pet food products 435.55 430.28
Total revenue from contracts with customers 6,327.39 4,901.36
(ii) Geographical Information
Within India 6,327.39 4,901.36
QOutside India = ~
Total revenue from contracts with customers 6,327.39 4,901.36
(iii) Timing of revenue recognition
Goods transferred at a point of time 6,327.39 4,471.08
Services transferred over the time = -
Total revenue from contracts with customers 6,327.39 4,471.08
(b) Contract balances
Trade receivables (refer note 11) 754.47 623.23
Contract liabilities (refer note 13) 199.75 32.21
Trade receivables are non interest bearing. Credit period generally falls in the range of 30 to 90 days.
Contract liabilities consist of short-term advances received to supply goods from customer,
(c) Reconciling the amount of revenue recognised in the statement of profit and loss with the contracted price
Revenue as per contracted price 6,364.79 4,926.10
Adjustments:
Sales return (23.98) (24.00)
Discount (13.42) (0.74)
Revenue from contracts with customers 6,327.39 4,901.36
(d) Performance obligations
Sale of goods: Performance obligation is satisfied when control of goods is transferred to the customer, generally on delivery of the
goods. If in case there is any deviation then preduct supplied will get replaced with new product.
Year ended Year ended
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
(Restated)*
21 Other income
Interest income
Interest income earned on:
- bank deposits (at amortised cost) 90.90 -
- financial assets (at amortised cost) 54.36 17.63
Interest received on income tax refund 0.84 0.05
146.10 17.68
Other
Insurance claim received - 1.95
Scrap Sales 3.82 -
Others 6.70 5.68
10.52 7.67
Other gains and losses
Gain on sale of property, plant and eguipment (net) 2.24 -
Gain on foreign currency transactions and translation (net) 4.78 -
7.02 -
163.64 25.35
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22

23

24 Changes in inventories of finished goods and Stock in trade

25

26

*Please refer note no. 38 regarding disclosures pursuant to Ind AS-8.

27 Depreciation and amortisation expense

Cost of raw material and components consumed

a Raw material and components consumed

Inventory at the beginning of the year
Add: Purchases

Less: inventory at the end of the year

Purchase of stock-in-trade

Purchases

Opening Stock:
Finished goods
Stock in trade

a. In hand

b. In transit

Closing Stock:
Finished goods
Stock in trade
a. In hand

b. In transit

Net decrease/(increase)

Employee benefits expense

Salaries and wages

Contribution to provident and other fund
Gratuity expense (refer note 34)

Staff welfare expenses

Finance Costs

Interest expense on financial liabilities at amortised cost

Interest on delay deposit of taxes
Other finance costs

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment (refer note 3)

Depreciation of Right-of-use assets

Year ended
March 31,2024

Year ended
March 31, 2023

230.33 -
204.33 587.86
434.66 587.86

(194.75) (230.33)
239.91 357.53
4,759.95 2,851.27
4,759.95 2,851.27

Year ended
March 31,2024

Year ended
March 31, 2023

5.53 -
2,338.62 2,740.97
1.68 369.20
2,345.83 3,110.17
57.57 5:53
988.74 2,338.62
259.73 1.68
1,306.04 2,345.83
1,039.79 764.34
Year ended Year ended
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
1,353.17 1,069.28
59.31 48.64
8.89 3.67
2.94 0.83
1,424.31 1,122.42
Year ended Year ended
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
(Restated)*
32.70 32.80
0.02 1.03
0.04 -
32.76 33.83
Year ended Year ended
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
54.34 25.50
13.54 -
67.88 25.90
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28 Other expenses

Consumption of packing materials
Consumption of stores and spares
Power and fuel
Rent
Repair and maintenance

- Machinery

- Building

- others
Insurance
Rates and taxes
Communication expenses
Postage and courier
Travelling and conveyance
Printing and stationery
Freight cartage and other distribution cost
Commission and brokerage
Legal and professional charges
Payments to auditors (refer note below)
Training and recruitment expenses
Advertising and sales promaotion expenses
Security expenses
Testing and inspection charges
Bank charges
Trade and other receivables written off
Loss on foreign exchange fluctuation
Allowance for expected credit loss
Miscellaneous expenses

Total

Note:
Payments to auditors (excluding input tax)
I To statutory auditors
a) Audit fees
b) Tax audit fees

Year ended
March 31,2024

Year ended
March 31, 2023

- 28.93
2.82 2.14
9.23 4.00

23.24 18.76
1.24 0.38
0.65 0.03
2.99 1.85

14.30 14.85

132,73 10.34
9.19 7.31
0.81 0.49
305.98 328.08
2.21 0.78
84.08 54.37
136.29 128.52
179.52 310.18
1.00 0.50

11.22 13.91

99.29 97.62

18.32 1.64
8.34 4.08
0.72 0.90
0.11 5.06

- 1.68
9.95 z

24.52 19.24

1,078.76 1,055.64
0.75 0.50
0.25 .
1.00 0.50
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29 Income taxes
20.1 Income tax ised in the St of profit and loss
Current tax

In respect of the current year
In respect of the previous year

Deferred tax
In respect of the current vear
Impact of change in tax rate

Total i tax gnised in the current year

P

The Income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows:

Profit before tax

Statutory income tax rate

Income tax expense at statutory income tax rate

Effect of Income that is exempt from taxation

Effect of expenses that are not deductible In determining taxable profit

Effect of losses on which deferred tax has not created
At and effective Income tax of Nil (March 31, 2022: Nil)

29.2 Income tax rec ised in other c I ive income

Income tax relating to item that will not be reclassified te profit or loss
- Remeasurement of the defined benefit plan

Total income tax expense recognised in other c pret ive income

Year ended Year ended
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023

(171.68) (44.57)

(171.68) (44.57)
(171.§§I f@

(2,152.33) (1,284.22)

25.168% 25.168%

(541.70) {358.69)
(13.02) =
0.06 31.24

382.98 282.88

(171.58! {44.57)

112 0.81

1.12 0.81
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30

(i)

(ii)

31

32

33

Contingent liabilities and commitments (to the extent not provided for)

Contingent liabilities
The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial statements.

Commitments
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for March 31,2024: Nil and March 31, 2023: INR

10.16 lacs.

Segment Reporting

Basis for segmentation
The operations of the Company are limited to one segment viz. Pharmaceutical products, which as per Ind AS - 108 "Operating Segments"” is

considered the only reportable segment.

Geographic Segment
The Company operates only in one Country and does not have any separate identifiable geographic segment.

Major Customer
No single customer accounted for 10% or more of the Company’s revenue for the year ended March 31,2024 and March 31, 2023.

Capital Management

For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital includes issued equity capital and all other equity reserves attributable to the
equity holders of the Company. The primary objective of the Company's capital management is to safeguard the Company's ability to remain as
a going concern and maximise the shareholder value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions, annual operating plans and long
term and other strategic investment plans. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividend
paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The current capital structure of the Company s equity based and
financing through short term borrowings. The funding requirements are met through a mixture of equity, intermal fund generation and short term
borrowings as per the Company's policy to meet anticipated funding requirements.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the year ended March 31,2024 and March 31, 2023,

Financial Instruments

Fir ial risk 1t objective and policies
This section gives an overview of the sianificance of financial instruments for the Company and provides additional information on the balance
sheet. Details of significant accounting policies, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis on which income

and expenses are recognised, in respect of each class of finandial asset, financial liability and equity instrument are disclosed in Note 2.

Financial assets and liabilities:

The accounting classification of each category of financial instruments, and their carrying amounts, are set out below:

Total carrying

March 31,2024 FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised Cost valie Total fair value

Financial assats

Trade receivables 754.47 754.47 754.47
Cash and cash equivalents 835.71 835.71 835.71
Cther non current financial assets 663.24 663.24 663.24
Loans 32.67 32.67 32.67
Total 2,286.09 2,286.09 2,286.09
Financial liabilities

Trade payables 1,192.43 1,192.43 1,192:43
other financial liabilities 546.00 546.00 546.00
Total 1,738.43 1,738.43 1,738.43

March 31, 2023 FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised Cost T°"’i:r:;‘""9 Total fair value

Financial assets

Trade receivables 623.23 623.23 623.23
Cash and cash equivalents 1,778.98 1,778.98 1,778.98
Other non current financial assets 383.49 383.49 383.49
Total 2,785.70 2,785.70 2,785.70
Financial liabilities

Trade payables 842.75 842.75 B42.75
other financial liabilities 547.06 547.06 547.06
Total 1,389.81 1,389.81 1,389.81
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a)

b

—

Fair value hierarchy
The table shown below analyses financial instruments carried at fair value, by valuation method. The different levels have been defined below:

e« Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets far identical assets or liabilities
s Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e., as prices)

or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices)
e Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data {(unobservable inputs)

Risk m t fr. rk

Risk management frameawork

The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:
- Liquidity risk;

- Interest rate risk; and

- Credit risk

The Company's board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk management framework.

The Company's risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits
and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed periodically to reflect changes in

market conditions and the Company’s activities.

Liquidity
The Company requires funds both for short-term operational needs as well as for long-term investment programme mainly in growth projects.

The Company generates sufficient cash llows from the current operations which together with the available cash and cash equivalents and shart-
term investments provide liquidity both in the short-term as well as in the long-term.

The Company remains committed to maintaining a healthy liquidity, gearing ratio, deleveraging and strengthening our balance sheet, The
maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on the remaining period from the date of balance sheet to the contractual maturity
date is given in the table below. The figures reflect the contractual undiscounted cash obligation of the Company.

As at March 31,2024

Financial liabilities Less than 1 year  More than 1 Year Total
Trade payables 1,192.43 - 1,192.43
other financial liabilities 546.00 - 546,00
Total 1,738.43 - 1,738.43

As at March 31, 2023 (Restated)*

Financial liabilities Less than 1 year  More than 1 Year Total
Trade payables B842.75 - B42.75
other financial liabilities 547.06 - 547.06
Total 1,389.81 - 1,389.81

Interest rate risk
The exposure of the Company's financial assets to interest rate risk is as follows:

Floating rate Fixed rate financial Non-interest

As at Total Enandial ssseh asadt bearing financial

asset
Financials assets March 31,2024 2,286.09 = 695.98 1,590.11
Financials assets March 31, 2023 2,785.70 - 383.50 2,402.20

The exposure of the Company's financial liabilities to interest rate risk is as follows:
: i . Non-interast

As at Total " Flogtln_g ra't_e_ Fixgd 'rat_e_ f_lnartcla] bearing financial

financial liabilities liabilities RN

liabilities

Financial liabilities March 31,2024 1,738.43 A 546.00 1,192.43

Financial liabilities March 31, 2023 1,389.81 - 547.06 842.75
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¢) Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that counterparty will default on its contractual cbligations resulting in financial loss to the Company. The Company
has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties and obtaining sufficient collateral, where appropriate, as a means of
mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults. The Company regularly monitors its counterparty limits by reviewing the outstanding balance

and ageing of the same.
Possibl it rish

Credit risk related to trade recejvables

Credit risk related to bank balances

Other credit risk

Credit risk managament

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to
a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally
from the Company’s receivables from customers and investment securities. Credit risk
is managed through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously
monitering the creditworthiness of customers to which the Company grants credit
terms in the normal course of business.

Receivables are deemed to be past due or impaired with reference to the Company's
normal terms and conditions of business. These terms and conditions are determined
on a case to case basis with reference to the customer's credit quality and prevailing
market conditions. Receivables that are classified as "past due’ in the above tables are
those that have not been settled within the terms and conditions that have been
agreed with that customer.

Company holds bank balances with reputed and creditworthy banking institution
within the approved exposures limit of each bank. Mone of the Company's cash
equivalents, including time deposits with banks, are past due or impaired.

The company is exposed to credit risk in relation to security deposits,

The carrying value of the financial assets other than cash represents the maximum credit credit exposure. The company's maximum exposure to
credit risk as at March 31,2024 is INR 2,286.06 lacs and as at March 31, 2023 is INR 2,785.62 lacs.
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34 Employee Benefits
The Company participates in defined contribution and benefit schemes, the assets of which are held {where funded) In separately administersd funds.

For defined contribution schames the amount charged to the statement of profit or loss is the total of contnbutions payable in the year,

a. Defined contribution plan

The Company makes contributions towards provident fund and employse state insurance scheme to a defined contribution retirement benefit plan for qualifying employees. The Company’s contribution to the
Employees Provident Fund and Employeas State Insurance schems is with the Regi ravident Fund Ci . Under the scheme, the Company |s reguired to contribute a specfied percentage of
payroll cost to the retirernent benafit scheme to fund the banefits.

During the year, the Company has recognised INR 59.31 lacs {March 31, 2023; INR 48.354lacs) towards Provident Fund and others contribution in the Statement of Profit and Loss, The contribution payablz to the
plan by the Company is at the rate specified in rules to the scheme.

b. Defined benefit plan = Gratuity plan
The company will provide for the gratulty benefits to its employees on completion of statutory eligibility bime period of 4 years 240 days. Therefore, no provisions has been created during the year.

The Company's contripution towards its gratuity ability is a defined benefit retirement plan.

The gratulty |lability arises on retirement, withdrawal, resignation and death of an employes, The aforesaid liability is calculated on the basis of fifteen days salary (i.e, last drawn basic salary) for each complstad
year of service subject to completion of five years service.

i. Risks associated with Plan Provisions

Risks assooated with the plan provisions are actuarial risks, These risks are:- (1) interest risk {discount rate risk), (i) mortality risk and (i} salary risk.

Interest rick {discount rate risk) A decrease in the bond interest rate {discount rate) will increasa the plan Hzbilicy

Mortality risk The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the mortality of plan participants, For this report we have
used Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2012-14) ultimate table,
& change n martality rate will have a bearing on the plan's liability.

Salary risk The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated with the assumption of salary increase rate of plan participants in future, Deviation In the rate of

Increase of salary in future for plan participants from the rate of increase in salary used to determine the present value of obligation will have 2 bearing cn the
plan's liability.

In respect of the plan in India, the most recent acturial valuation of the plan aszets and the present value of the defined benafit obligaton were carriad out as at March 31, 2023, The presant value of defined bapafit
obligation, and the refated current service cost and past service cost, were measured using the projected unit credit method.

ii. Principal actuarial assumptions:
Principle actuarial assurmnption used to determing the present value of the benefit obligation are as follows:

5. Particulars Refer note As at As at
No. below March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
|, Discount rate (p.a.} 1 £,95% 7.15%
li. Salary escalation rate (p.a.} -Office Staff 3 B8.00% 8.00%
Salary escalation rate (p.a.} -Fleld Staff 3 5.00% 6.00%
Notes
1 The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Indian Gevernment secunbies as at the balance sheet date for the estimated term of abligations,
2 The expectad return is based on the expactation of the average long term rate of return expected on investments of the fund during the term of the
3 The estimates of future salary increases considerad takes into account the inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors,
As at As at

March 31,2024

March 31, 2023

ili. Demographic assumptions:

1 Retirement age &0 Years

2 Mortaiity rate 100% af [ALM {2012~
14) Ultimate

3 Average Outstanding service of Emplayes upto retirement 7.2z

4 No of Employess 118

5 Alttrition rate Service up to 5 year:
Field Staff - 21%
Dffice Staff - 22%
Service above 5

vears:
Field Staff - 8%,
Cffice Staff - 6%

G0 Years
100% of IALM (2012-14)
uitimats
6.34
111
Service up to 5 year:

Field Staff - 21%,
Office Staff - 22%,
Service above 5 years:

Field Staff - 8%,
Qffics Staff - 6%
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The following tables set out the Punded status of the gratulty plan and amounts recegnised in the Company's Ainancal statements:

a. ised in the of profit and loss in respect of these defined benefits plans are as follows:
5.  Particulars Year ended Year ended
No.
March 31,3024 March 31, 2023
A Current seryice cost 7.29 3.61
B Met interest expenses 1.60 0.06
Components of defined benefit costs recognised in Statement of Profit or Loss B.89 3.67
b. Remeasuremeant on the net defined benefit liability:
5.  Particulars Year ended Year ended
No.
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
A Actunal (gains)/osses due to change in demographic assumptions . S
B Acturial (gains)/losses due to change in financial assumptions 0.85 (1.52)
(] Acturial {gains)/losses due to change in axperience variance 3.50 4.74
Component of defined benefit costs in Other Compr Incoma 4.45 3.22
The current service cost and the pet interest expensa for the year are included In the "Employes benefits expense’ in the statament of profit and less.
The remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability is included in the other comprehensive income.
L8 Met defined benefit asset/ (liability ) recognised In the balance sheet :
S.  Particulars As at As at
No. March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
A Present value of defined banefit obligation 37.06 22.95
Unfunded status - deficit 37.06 22.95
Current Portion {refer note 12) 1,48 1.13
Nen Current Portion (refer note 12) 35.58 21.82
d.  Movement in the fair value of the defined benefit obligation:
5.  Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
A Opening defined benefit cbligation 22.95 0.88
B Current service cost 7.29 3.61
c Interest cost 1.60 0.06
D Actuarial {gain)/loss an obligation 4.45 3,22
E Acquisition/ Divestitura 0,77 15,20
F Benefits paid = =
Clasing defined benefit obligations (A+B+C+D+E+F) 37.06 22.95

e

Sensitivity Analysis

Significant actuarisl assumptions for the determination of the defined benefit obligation are discount rate and sxpected salary increase. The sensitivity analysis below have besn detarmined based an reasonably
passible changes of the assumpticns oocurring at the end of the reporting year, while holding all other assumptions constant.

Particulars 'Hmnmu As at March 31, 2023
Decrease Increase Decrease Increase
Discount Rate (-/+0,5%) 3e.7a {35.45) 24,02 (21.95)
{% change compared to base due to sensitivity)
Zalary Growth Rate [-/+0.50) {35.88) 38.31 {22.27) 23.64
{% change compared to base due to sensitivity)

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation as It is unlikely that the change In assumpticns would cceur in isolation of ane anather as
some of the assumptions may be corralated.

Furthemore, in presenting the above sensitrvity analysis, the presant value of the defined benefit cbligation has been calculatad using the projected unit credit methed at the end of the reporting year, which is the
same as that applied in calculating the defined benefit Mability recagnised in the Balance shest

Thers was no change In the methods and assumptions used In prepaning tha sensitivity analysis from prior years

i % The expected maturity analysis of undiscounted defined benefit obligation Is as follows:

As ot As at
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023

Expected cash flows over the next

‘Within the naxt 12 months 1,48 113
Between 2 and 5 years 11.584 7.67
Maore than 5 years 17.66 845
30.98 17.26
d.  Actuarial i for o b:
5. Particulars Refer note below Year ended Year ended
No.
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
i Discount rate {p.a.) 1 65.95% 7.15%
il Salary escalation rate {p.a.) OFfice Staff 3 8.00% 8.00%
Salary escalation ratz (p.a.} Field Staff 3 6.00% 5.00%:
MNotes
- The discount rate is based on the prevalling market yields of Indian Government sscurities as at the balance sheet date for the estimated term of obligations

2 The cormpersated absences plan is unfunded.

3 The estimates of future salary increase considered takes into account the inflation, seniarity, promation and other relavant factors.
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35 Related Party Disclosures
In accordance with the requirements of Indian Accounting Standard Ind (AS) — 24 ‘Related Party Disclosures’ the names of the related party

where control exists/able to exercise significant influence along with the aggregate transactions / year end balances with them.

A. List of Related Parties (with whom the company had transactions during the year)
Holding Mankind Pharma Limited

Subsidiary Upakarma Ayurveda Private Limited

Fellow Subsidiaries Penta Latex LLP
Packtime Innovations Private Limited
Relax Pharmaceuticals Private Limited
Mediforce research Private Limited
Mankind Consumer Healthcare Private Limited
Mankind Medicare Private Limited

Other A TO Z Packers
A.S. Packers (partnership firm)
Teen Murti Product Private Limited
Mankind Biosys Private Limited
Paonta process equipments
Arjun Juneja
Sheetal Arora
Rajeev Juneja

Key Managerial Person{KMP} Anil Kumar
Abhay Kumar Srivastava

Akhlas Ahmed
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Earnings per Equity Shares
Basic earnings per equity shara has baan computed by drviding net profit after tax by the weighted averge number of equity shares sutstanding far the yaar,
Year ended Year ended
March 31.2024 March 31, 2023
{Restated)*
Face value per Equity Share 10 10
INat Frofit aftar tax as per stacemant of Profit and Loss atributasle to Equity Sharenolders (1,2B80.65] (1,239.55)
‘Weightad Averags number of Equity Shares used as denaminater for calculating Basic EPS 8510000 56,33,636
Baslc Earninag Par Share (23.27) 22000
Mat Profit after tax as per statemint of Proft and Loss atoributabis to Equity, Potential Equity Shares {1,980.65) 1,239.65)
Weightad Average number of Eguity and Patential Eguity Shares used as denamingtor of calculeting Dikuted EFS 33,5,
Diluted Earning Par Share (23.27) {22.00)
1. Basic and Diluted EPS have bean cakulated only considaring tha number of Equity sharas,
Nete: Optionally Convartible Prefarence Shares that could potentially dilute basic eamings per share in the future have not been induded in the calculation of Diluted Earnings Per Share because they are antidilutiva for the yaar endgad March 31,2024 and
March 31, 2023,
*Please refer note no, 3B regarding disclosures pursuant to Ind AS-8.
There wers no amounts which were required to b transfarrad to the Investor Education and Pratection Fund by the Company,
Drischosures pursuant to [nd AS-8 "Accounting pelicies, changes m accounting estimates and errors” (specified under saction 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 7 of Companies [Accounts} Rules, 2015) ara 'given balow: Follawing are the
restatamants mada In the curant yaar financial statements in previous year,
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2023 Nature
[Reported )
Liabilities
Equity Share Capital 851.00] 13,351.00 ion items
Equity Carmg af Dptional C ibla Praferance Sharas 11,118.93 - Reclassfication itams
Liabikty Comgorent of Optional Convertible Prafarence Shares 1,505.0% = ian tams
Ratained Earnings (1,524.43) (1,681.47) Reclassification items
Aszets
1,491.14 1,133.83 items
[Han 5 at isod cast - 374.20 Rec ibems
| Income
Interast income on financial assets 0,68 17.63
Other Encame 0,36 5,68
Expenses
Interast axpensa on barrawings 151.45] 32.80
Loss before tax (1,425.18) {1,284.22)
Loss after tax (1,3B0.61) (1,239.65)
| Total comprehensive loss for the year (1,383.02) {1,242.06)
iEuml»gs per share (Basic/Diluted} (24.51) (22.00)

The above restatemants in gravisus year have been made wherever necessary to reflact the mirror accounting adopted by the halding esrmpany in respact of optionally convertible preference shares in accardanca with the provisions of Ind AS-32 “Financial
Instruments : Presentation” . These restatements does not have any material Impact,

The income Tax Dapartmant (“the Department”) had conducted a Search undar Section 132 of ‘the Income Tax Act (“the Search”) en the Halding Company ("Mankind Pharma Limited™) in May 20:23. 'Pursuant to the search conducted on the Halding
Campany, Mankind Lifesciences Private Limited (“the 'Company”) has received notices under Section 148 of the Income Tax Act 1981 in Decembar 2023 'requiring the Company to submst incarme tax retums for AY 2021-22 and 2022-23, The Company has
ravised its income tax raturns for the above-mentioned Azsessmant Years. Howevaer, based on e mada by tha and Its legal advisar, the Campany is of the view that no material "adjustments are requiced to thesa financial rasults.

The Company has used accounting software for mainkaining its bocks of accaunt which has 2 featurs of recarding audit trail (adit log) facility and the same has speratsd throughaut the year for ail relevant transactions recorded in the saftware, axcept that
audit trail feature is not enabled for diract changes to data for usars with cartain privileged access rights and also for certain changes made using privilaged/ administragva access right, Further, in respect of software usad in malntaining payroll
records which operated and maintained by a third party Service providar, In absance of servico arganisation contrals repast, managemant is unable to determine whethar sudit trail feature of the underlying database was enabled and operated throughout
the yaar, Furthar no instance of audit trail feature being tamperad with was noted In respect of accounting software except that in absence of servica organisation controls regort, we are unable to assess the same in respact of tha software used to maintain
payrell recards,

Ratio analysis and its eleamants

Year ended Year endad
Ratio Numerator Denominator March 31,2024 March 31, 2023 S Change Remarks
{Restatad}*
Current Ratio Current Assets Current Liabilities .90 3.83 -50.41% Refer Note L below
Debe- Equity Ratio Total Dabt Sharehalder’s Equity 0.0 - 0.00%
Debt Service Covaraga ratia Earnings for dabt servica = Nat Debt service = Intersst & Laase (58.39) {32.96) T Rafer Moba 2 below
profit after baxes + N h ¥ + Frincipal
oparating expenses
Return on Equity ratio et Prafits after baxes — Poarage Shareholdar's Equity -18.56% =15.62% 1B,86%
Prefarence Dividend
Inventory Tumaver ratia Cost of goods sobd Awersge Inventary 2.96 1.40 111.79% Refer Note 3 below
Trade Racalvabls Tumovar Ratio Met credit sales = Gross credit  Awerags Trade Recejvable 949 10.81 «14.99%
sales - sales ratum
Trade Payabls Tumaover Ratio Met credit purchases = Gross  Awverage Trade Payables 4.88 1.74 161.12% Refer Mote 4 below
credit purchasas - purchase
returm
Net Capital Turmovar Raba Net sales = Total sales - sales  Werking capital = Qurrent asssts - 3F5.22% 113,26% 196,85% Rerer Note 1 balow
returm Current lizbilitizs
et Profit ratio Nat Profit Met sales = Total sales - sales =31.30% =15.25% 23.77%
return
Raturmn on Capital Employed Earnings befere interest and  Capital Employed = Tangible Net -21.91% -10.7 % 104.43% Rafer Mote 5 below
taxas Warth -+ Total Debt + Deferred Tax
liatsaliy

Reason for Changa more than 25%

1. The rmavement in current year i primaridy on account of disproprotionate decreasa in current assets and Increase in current haodities,
2. The mavement in current year & primardy on account of disproprotionats decrease in borrawings,

3. The mavement in current yaar i primarily on account of disprops decraasa in A

4. The mavemant in current year i primarily an Sccount of disgroprobonate increase in purchase,

5. The movement in current year & primarily an account of disproprotonate increase in loss.
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42 Other Information
[i} The Company does not have any charges or satefaction which ks yet 1o be registersd with ROC beyand the statutory period.
{it) The Cormpany have not traded or invested in Crypro currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year
(Fi] The Company heve nol advanced of loaned or nvested funds o any other person(s) or ontitylies), including foreign entities (lntermediaries) with the understanding thet the Intermediary shall:

(&) Erectly or indirsctly lend or invest In other parsans or entities Wantified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the cempany (Ultimate Benaficiaries) or
{hjftowide any guarantas, sacurity or the |ke ta ar en behalf of the Ulimate Baneficiaries

{iv] The Company have not received any fund [ram any person{s) or entityfies), including foreign eatities {Funding Party] with the understanding (whethar recorded In writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:
{a) diroct!y or indirectly fend ¢e invest in other persons or enlities identified in any mannér whatsoéver by of an bhall of the Funding Party {Utimate Benelicaries) or
b} peovide any guarantes, security or the Fke on behail of the Uitimate Beneficaries

(v} The Company have not any such transaction which |s not recorded |n the bagks of Bocaunts that has been surrenderad or disciosed 2% incame during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such s, search or survey ar any
other relevant provizions of ihe Income Tax Act, 1961

{vi) The Company dess not have any Banami property, where sny proceading has been initisted or pending against the Company for holding any Benami property,

{vii] The Company has not been declared as withl dofaulter by any bank or finandial institution or gavernivent & Bny govemment authonty.

[wiii} The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013

(i) The Company dogs not have any transactions with companies struck off under seclion 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of Campanizs Act. 1958,

A5 per our repart of even date

For Bhagl Bhardwaj Gaur & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
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